ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 4, 2005
8:37 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair

Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senator Hollis French (via tel econference)
Senat or Gretchen Quess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 117

"An Act relating to the admssibility into evidence of the prior
recorded statenent of a crinme victimless than 16 years of age;
and adding Rule 413, Alaska Rules of Evidence, and anending
Rul es 402 and 403, Al aska Rul es of Evidence."

MOVED CSSB 117(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 20
"An Act relating to of fenses agai nst unborn children.™

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 117

SHORT TI TLE. RECORDED STATEMENTS OF CHI LD VI CTI MS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

02/ 28/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 28/ 05 (S) JUD, FIN

03/ 10/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 10/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 31/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 31/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 31/ 05 (S) M NUTE (JUD)

04/ 04/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2005



BILL: SB 20
SHORT TI TLE: OFFENSES AGAI NST UNBORN CHI LDREN
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

01/ 11/ 05 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/11/05 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 11/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 01/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 01/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( STA)

03/ 15/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 15/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 20( STA) CQut of Committee
03/ 15/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( STA)

03/ 16/ 05 (S) STA RPT CS 1NR 4AM SAME TI TLE

03/ 16/ 05 (S AM THERRI AULT, ELTON, WAGONER, HUGGE NS
03/ 16/ 05 (S) NR DAVI S

03/ 16/ 05 (S) FI' N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

03/ 31/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 31/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 04/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Mchele Pettijohn, Social Wrker

Ofice of Children’s Services

Departnent of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 117

Senat or Fred Dyson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 20

M. Wes Keller

Staff to Senator Dyson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 20

Ms. Anna Franks

Pl anned Par ent hood
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 20
Ms. Jasm n Cherian

No address provided

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- Apri |

4, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 20

Ms. Rebecca Whiteman, Representative
Fam |y Vi ol ence Prevention Fund
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 20

Ms. Cassandra Johnson
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 20

Ms. Carrie Robinson, Attorney
Al aska Network on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 20

M. Chip Waggoner, Executive Director
Al aska Cat holic Conference
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 20

Ms. Anne Car peneti

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 20

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:37:30 AM Present were Senators
Huggi ns, Therriault, Guess, and Chair Seekins.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 117 to be up for consideration.

SB 117- RECORDED STATEMENTS OF CHI LD VI CTI MS

8:38:35 AM
SENATOR HUGAE NS noved Version \Y as the working docunent.
Hearing no objections, the notion carried.

SENATOR FRENCH informed the comrittee he carried SB 117 over in
order to allow the public an opportunity to testify.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Senator French to outline the changes to SB
117.

SENATOR FRENCH inforned Page 2 line 9, subparagraph (H) was
changed to read, “the court has had an opportunity to review the
recording”, which nakes it |ess burdensone but does not make it
mandatory for the court to watch the recording at the tine.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2005



8:40: 01 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked Senator French what the word “avail abl e”
nmeans in terns of the victimin the courtroom

SENATOR FRENCH responded the victim would not have to be inside
the courtroom but available in the building.

8:.42: 00 AM

M5. M CHELLE PETTIJOHN, social worker, Ofice of Children’s
Services, testified in support of SB 117. She said she has been
trained to perform forensic interviews at advocacy centers.
Forensic interviews should be admssible in court because
children should only have to state their story one tine.

8:45:51 AM
M5. ROSEMARY HAGEVI G, Catholic Conmmunity Services testified in
support of SB 117.

CHAIR SEEKINS noved SB 117 from conmttee wth individua
recommendations and acconpanying fiscal not es. Hearing no
obj ections, the notion carri ed.

SB 20- OFFENSES AGAI NST UNBORN CHI LDREN

8:47:15 AM

SENATOR FRED DYSON introduced SB 20. He said federal |aw gives
protection to unborn children through the Unborn Victins of
Viol ence Act, and SB 20 is a state version of the federal |aw.

8:49:16 AM

SENATOR DYSON said he has been very careful not to attack the
current right of a woman for a legal abortion. No one can be
prosecuted for the death or injury of an unborn child when it
happens in the course of nedical treatnent. SB 20 is also
careful not to assign personhood to an unborn child.

8:51:33 AM

SENATOR DYSON said there are now children born at 24 weeks who
survive. SB 20 is an attenpt to afford sonme neasure of
protection to an unborn child as it is devel oping. He encouraged
the board nmenbers to think about culpability as if it were
agai nst a person al ready born.

8:54: 07 AM

SENATOR DYSON added he believes there are no unwanted children
The Legislature has the ability to provide protection of the |aw
to nost entities including game and streans.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2005



8:59: 35 AM

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked Senator Dyson to reconsider on the
vi ol ence against pregnant wonen issue. She suggested using
aggravating sentences. The best thing to do to protect an unborn
child is to protect all wonen agai nst viol ence.

9:01: 08 AM

SENATOR GUESS asked for the definition of death of an unborn
child in the concept of m scarriages. She stated her concern was
a mscarriage could be prosecuted under the statutes.

9:02: 49 AM
SENATOR DYSON stated it would have to be “intentionally and
knowi ngly.”

SENATOR GUESS stated “recklessly” is also included in the
criteria.

MR. WES KELLER, staff to Senator Dyson, testified the recklessly
standard is for manslaughter and crimnally negligent applies to
hom ci de.

9: 04: 29 AM
SENATOR DYSON said it was a very high standard to prove it was a
knowi ngly intentional act.

9: 06: 08 AM

SENATOR GUESS asked the conmmttee to think about the issue. A
woman who runs a 10K race could be prosecuted. SB 20 opens up
the possibility to prosecute any wonman who suffers a
m scarri age.

9:07:45 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said he has seen pregnant wonen taking part in
activities that sone could call risky where others would not.
The nedi cal community has differing standards.

9:10: 27 AM

SENATOR DYSON asked the commttee nenbers to think of the issue
as if it were a born child.

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH stated there was difficulty analyzing the
situation when trying to consider an unborn fetus a born child.

9:13: 44 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2005



SENATOR FRENCH said the law currently provides penalties for
sonmeone who kills a fetus through the definition of “serious
physi cal injury.” Sonmeone who hurts a wonan and causes serious
physical injury can be prosecuted. He asked Senator Dyson how
mansl| aught er m ni mrum sent ences woul d be affected.

9:15:43 AM

SENATOR DYSON answered Al aska |aw nakes clear distinctions and
it involves transferability of intention. Wen sonmeone hurts an
uni ntended victim the intention can be transferred.

9:17:56 AM
SENATOR FRENCH said adding a separate sentence for a wonan who
is 4 weeks pregnant is problematic.

9:20: 07 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS pondered whether a 4-week-old fetus deserves
protection under the | aw.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT said the issue beconmes problematic when
it is an action the wonman takes hersel f.

9:23:10 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS commented there was a delicate balance between a
wonman choosing to participate in a physical activity, which
could bring harm to an unborn child, and a woman choosing to
i ngest a harnful substance.

SENATOR GUESS comented going to work could be a physical
activity. It is also difficult when you consider a wonan does
not al ways know when she is pregnant.

9: 25: 44 AM

SENATOR DYSON asserted that “knowingly” is the qualifier. He
stated it was not the intent to have people calling the police
on any woman who mght be endangering an unborn child. He
expressed doubt that innocent people would be prosecuted.

Chair Seeki ns announced a brief recess at 9:28:21 AM
Chair Seekins reconvened the neeting at 9:39:10 AM

9: 39: 52 AM

M5. ANNA FRANKS, chief executive officer, Planned Parenthood of
Al aska, said Planned Parenthood of Alaska was unable to support
SB 20 as it is currently witten, although they would support
sonme changes to the bill. A woman has the right to have a child
as well as the right to have a legal abortion. Their primry

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2005



concern is giving separate legal rights to the fetus. She
claimted SB 20 undermnes the national trend toward a wonman’s
right to choose.

9:42: 07 AM

MS. FRANKS voi ced doubt as to the ability to prove assault on a
fetus resulted in a negative outcone. Her discussions with the
Department of Law have |led her to believe sentencing aggravators
woul d be a nore sinpler and useful solution.

9:43:49 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS stated he supports giving rights to an unborn
chi |l d.

9:45: 06 AM

M5. CASSANDRA JOHNSON, infornmed commttee nenbers that she
worked wth wvictine and survivors of donestic and gender
violence for nine years. Al though she was pleased that the
Legi slature was addressing this prevalent problem she couldn't
support the current draft of SB 20. She pointed out that
nati onw de donestic violence experts unaninously oppose this
type of bill

She reported that since the late 1970s Al aska has been in the
top five states for reported sexual assaults and in 2002 Al aska
led the nation in wonen killed by a significant other. It's
necessary to educate all society nenbers to send the nessage
that gender violence won't be tolerated in Alaska. Sentencing
aggravators woul d recognize a crinme conmtted agai nst a pregnant
wonman and give the courts flexibility to consider harm to or
loss of the fetus. Acts of violence against a wonan are
abhorrent and particularly disturbing when conmtted against a
pregnant wonan.

Wen a violent crinme against a pregnant woman results in
m scarriage or stillbirth everyone shares the desire for the
crimnal justice system to respond decisively to exact the
appropriate punishnment. Protecting pregnant wonmen from viol ence
is a very serious problem that deserves to be elevated above
political agendas and partisan politics, she concl uded.

9:48: 33 AM

M5. CARRIE ROBINSON, attorney, Alaska Network on Donestic
Violence and Sexual Assault, explained that the network has
prograns statewide and it fully supports efforts to prevent
violent acts toward wonen. However, SB 20 has a nunber of

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2005



uni ntended consequences including preventing a victim of
donestic viol ence from seeki ng necessary nedi cal care.

In Alaska, nearly one in four teenage nothers have reported
physi cal abuse suffered during pregnancy. It's inportant to
remenber that these are just the reported statistics because
many acts of donestic violence go unreported.

9:50: 10 AM

Alaska ranks in the top three per capita nationwi de in sexual
assault and in 2002 it ranked nunber one for wonen nurdered by
men. Furthernore, the Anerican Medical Association Journal has
reported that nurder is the nunber one cause of injury to
pregnant wonen. Studies show that abuse escalates during
pregnancy and that pregnancy is the time when a woman is at the
greatest risk of injury. Because of that, it's inportant that
the justice systemis able to react strongly and decisively to
such acts.

She asked nenbers to imaging their reaction if it were their
daughter who was happily married when she brought hone the news
that she was pregnant but after that time her husband becane
abusi ve. Because the couple had a non-violent relationship prior
to the pregnancy, she mstakenly believes the abuse wll stop
once the baby is born.

If she were to miscarry because of the abuse to her abdomen, her
husband woul d be charged with rmurder under SB 20. The uni nt ended
consequence of this is that her husband mght be less likely to
take his wife in for energency care and the woman m ght also be
reluctant to seek nedical attention if she knew that her husband
m ght be charged with nmurder or mansl aughter.

9:52:17 AM

M5. ROBINSON reported that for a nunber of reasons it takes a
wonman approximately seven tinmes to extract herself from an
abusive relationship. It's well docunented that this is the nost
dangerous tine for her to leave the relationship. That coupled
with the fact that she may have limted financial and support
options raises the question of whether she could be charged with
failing to protect her unborn fetus under this bill

Looking at another scenario she questioned whether a snow
machine driver should be charged wth nmanslaughter if his
pregnant wife mscarries as a result of the ride. Wthout
question this would be a tragic accident, but it becones mnuch
nore conplex if rises to the | evel of mansl aughter.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2005



Instead of <conplicating the current crimnal statutes, she
suggested |looking at naking donestic violence crinmes an
aggravat or and keeping the focus on the wonen. "Al aska can be a
| eader for the nation by acknow edging a batterer cannot hurt a
fetus without hurting a woman."

9:54: 37 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked how | ong the network had been in existence.

M5. ROBINSON replied they have been in Alaska for nore than 20
years.

CHAI R SEEKI NS questioned whether she thought the justice system
al ready provi des adequate protection to pregnant wonen.

V5. ROBI NSON replied she did not.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked why the network hadn't brought |egislation
forward for consideration before this tine.

M5. ROBI NSON explained that in 1996 the network fully supported
the 1996 Donestic Violence and Protection Act and has always
striven for enhanced penalties and stricter laws to punish
violence against wonen. It's wunfortunate that these crines
frequently are pled out or beconme m sdeneanor donestic violence.
Resources are short for the Departnment of Law to be able to
handl e existing caseloads and so these crinmes aren't always
puni shed under existing |aws as they should be.

CHAI R SEEKI NS advi sed he knows | egislators who woul d be happy to
carry individual bills that |ook at what she is suggesting.

M5. ROBI NSON responded the network would fully support a bill
that made it an aggravator in the crimnal statutes.

9:56: 12 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS commented it would be easy to get such a bill
going. There are aggravators for all sorts of things and the
networ k woul d be advised to take such a project on.

M5. ROBINSON said she understands there is conprehensive
| egi sl ation | ooking at all sentencing in Al aska.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that bill already passed, but it didn't dea

wi th nam ng additional aggravators it's just how they would be
cat egori zed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT renarked several aggravators were added to
the bill before it was signed. He then asked Ms. Robinson to
clarify how a woman m ght be charged if she didn't take steps to
protect herself and her unborn child from an abusive situation
because the harm woul dn't be self inflicted.

M5. ROBINSON responded with the hypothetical situation of a
physician who advised a woman to |eave a donestic violence
rel ati onship because of the potential for injury to herself or
the unborn fetus. If the worman wasn't able to extract herself
bef ore another assault happened she understands the | egislation
to have the reckless elenent. That is to have reckl ess disregard
of a known risk. Therefore she would argue that under that
definition, she could be charged with failing to protect the
fetus.

9:58:40 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT opined that is a bit of a stretch.

M5. ROBINSON argued it isn't a stretch when you consider that
ot her states have passed child protective legislation in which
not hers have |ost custody because they didn't get out of an
abusi ve situation.

SENATOR THERRI AULT disagreed, but if she could point out how
that would realistically happen then the commttee should | ook
at ways to prevent that m sapplication of the |aw.

9:59: 34 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS agreed with Senator Therriault.

SENATOR GUESS said that's where she would agree to disagree.
Ref erenci ng page 2, lines 16-23 she said that according to her
reading of "reckless" and "negligent” in the crimnal statutes,
Ms. Robinson's interpretation is correct. Certainly a wonan
would be told she should have gotten out of the relationship
because she knew it was hurting herself and the unborn child.
Even if she didn't know, she should have known because of the
body of avail abl e evi dence.

Progress is being made in the evolution of donestic violence and
sexual assault because in the last ten years we've stopped
blam ng the victim However, the situation M. Robinson outlined
could fall wunder manslaughter and crimnal negligence, but not
mur der

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2005



In the five years she has been a | egislator she has dealt with a
nunber of sexual assault and donmestic violence bills and the
i ssue of aggravators has cone up. It hasn't been easy to get
donestic violence and sexual assault bills passed. |ssues that
were snaller than this have failed in one body or the other.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he would be happy to |ook at an aggravator
bill for donestic violence and sexual assault.

10: 01: 45 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT read the termnms, "recklessly causes” and "the
person causes" from page 2, lines 18 and 23 and said that if you
fail to extricate yourself from a potentially dangerous
situation you haven't caused the damage.

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGG NS said it pales himto | ean over backwards
to protect the nother while subordinating the fetus.

Ref erencing page 5, line 12 he read, "...m sconduct involving a
controlled substance in the first degree," and asked for her
t houghts on that phrase.

M5. ROBI NSON said she didn't understand the question.

SENATOR GUESS advi sed him that m sconduct involving a controlled
substance is another part of the |aw.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said he understands that, he sinply wanted her
take on what that really nmeans from her perspective.

M5. ROBINSON asked if he was referring to a donestic violence
cont ext .

SENATOR HUGA NS said no, he wanted to know what that neans to
her if it's tal king about m sconduct of the nother.

CHAIR SEEKINS said it's a felony to do that.
SENATOR GUESS added it’'s a section of |aw
10: 05: 48 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS clarified this adds nmurder of an unborn child to
the existing felonies.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said he understood that then questioned if it is
conduct of the nother that is being described.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2005



CHAI R SEEKINS replied it could be.

M5. ROBINSON said yes, it could be. Under the current version
there is no exception that the nother could be prosecuted for
sonething like that, but she wasn't clear how that relates to
the context of donestic violence and whether he wanted better
clarification fromthe Departnment of Law.

CHAIR SEEKINS interpreted the question to ask how people feel
about a pregnant wonan who was using a controlled substance in a
manner that caused the death of an unborn child.

SENATOR HUGGE NS sai d yes.
V5. ROBI NSON responded that is a whole other issue.

10: 07: 52 AM

M5. JASM NE CHARI AN, 8th grade student at Dzantik'i Heeni mddle
school, testified in support of SB 20. She stated the belief
that when a fetus has a heartbeat it has |ife and taking away
that life is wunfair to the baby and even nore so for the
parents. If both the nother and the fetus are injured
intentionally, nore than one |ife should be recognized.

10: 09: 30 AM

IVS. REBECCA  VWH TEMAN, Fam |y Vi ol ence Preventi on Fund
representative, described the nonprofit as the U S. Departnent
of Health and Human Services national resource center on
donmestic violence and healthcare. They work on policy at the
federal level and on the issue of healthcare and donestic
violence at the statewide level. Her area of expertise is in
prenatal health and she has been working on how to better screen
for famly violence into those prograns.

10: 10: 38 AM

M5. WHI TEMAN said they were asked to weigh in because in other
states precedents have been set when people have worked toward
sonething that seened to be a good idea, but had unintended
consequences. She expressed concern that SB 20 could put wonen
in harmse way and set them up to be re-victimzed. The concerns
are exactly those expressed by Ms. Robinson. If a woman is in a
violent relationship and a doctor advises her to |eave and she
doesn't do so she mght not seek nedical care due to concern
about what woul d happen to the partner.

10: 13: 05 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2005



VR. CH P  WAGGONER, executive di rector Al aska Cat hol i c
Conference, testified that the federal governnent has passed a
simlar law with regard to crinmes on federal property and at
| east 29 states have passed a simlar |aw

MR. WAGONER expressed the view that God created each person and
as such, each person has dignity and a right to life from
conception to a natural death.

10: 14: 12 AM

MR. WAGGONER said SB 20 recognizes that a child in the wonb
deserves the same protection as everyone in the room Quoting a
parent who attended the Key Canpaign, he said that when an
unborn child is taken and a parent's dreans for that child are
shattered, the responsible party should be held accountable. The
Catholic Conference fully supports SB 20 and would al so support
those people working in the donestic violence arena to prevent
donmestic violence. They and the Catholic bishops recognize this
as a serious problem in the state. He clarified the Catholic
Conference is the official public policy voice for the Ronman
Catholic Church in Al aska.

10: 16: 02 AM

SENATOR GUESS asked if the Catholic Conference has taken a
position on whether or not any mscarriage should Dbe
crimnalized.

MR. WAGGONER replied they have not taken a position and none of
the bishops are <crimnal attorneys. He had a nunber of
observations. He suggested the attorney general should give an
opinion on the bill to nake sure it treats the unborn in a
manner that s <consistent wth those who are alive. He
acknow edged that accidents do happen and not all are crines. He
hadn't heard prosecutorial discretion raised and certainly
prosecutors do have to decide whether or not sonething falls
within the realmof an accident or the realmof a crine. Not al
snowmobi |l e accidents should result in a charge of negligent
hom ci de or reckless endangernent. He suggested the sanme thing
would happen wth this bill. You sinply have to rely on
prosecutors to do the right thing.

10: 19: 09 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS said he didn't believe a nother would be held
responsible for exercising during pregnancy if she were to
m scarry.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 4, 2005



CHAIR SEEKINS asked if any organization affiliated wth the
Catholic Church has ever taken a position that a nother could be
held responsible for harm to an wunborn child if she was
participating in a |lawful activities.

MR WAGGONER sai d aborti on.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he understood the position on abortion. He
was talking about horseback riding, or a 10K race or a
roll ercoaster ride.

MR WAGGEONER sai d no.

CHAI R SEEKINS advised the commttee is charged with exam ning
potential bills to nmake sure they conply with both the U S and
state constitutions. It's understood that Roe versus Wade is an
interpretation of the Constitution but what he's been hearing is
that the state doesn't have the right to operate in other areas
t hat people woul d have |iked Roe versus Wade to have appli ed.

Looking strictly at the |anguage and interpretation of Roe
versus Wade, he suggested that nowhere does it say the state
cannot extend protection of wunborn children in situations that
are outside the particular circunstances addressed in that case.
He didn't believe this bill was treading on dangerous ground
with regard to Roe versus Wade so when people say that SB 20 is
treading on their constitutional rights he remai ns unconvinced.
He encouraged those who opposed the bill on constitutiona
grounds to bring supporting evidence forward.

If there is conclusive evidence that the commttee is treading
where they are not authorized to tread, he needs to see the
evi dence.

10: 24: 46 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked Ms. Car penet i to conment on the
interpretation of the word, "causes" on page 2, lines 18 and 23.
10: 25: 13 AM

MS. ANNE CARPENETI, crimnal division, Departnent of Law (DQOL),
acknow edged she heard the discussion that a woman nght
disregard her doctor's advice and return to an abusive
relationship and the concern about charges if there was a
subsequent m scarriage. Those situations would depend on facts
and it would be an extrene fact situation to argue that going
back to the relationship contributed to the death of the unborn
chi |l d.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 4, 2005



CHAIR SEEKINS noted that Black's Law Dictionary defines
"feticide" as the act or instance of killing a fetus, usually by
assaulting and battering the nother - an intentionally induced
m scarriage. He asked if folding SB 20 into that definition
would cone closer to the discussion heard that day about
unintentionally induced m scarri ages.

M5. CARPENETI didn't know that the term used would mke a
di f ference.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked for a definition to protect the nother so
that an unintentional mscarriage woul dn't be agai nst the | aw.

M5. CARPENETI replied in nurder of an unborn child it's against
the law to intend to cause the death of an unborn child or for
anot her person to cause the death of an unborn child. Problens
arise when discussing manslaughter and crimnally negligent
hom ci de.

10: 28: 06 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked what kind of language it would take to
exclude the wunintentional mscarriage of the child by the
not her.

M5. CARPENETI said it was too inportant an issue to give an
opinion wthout nore thought. Last year |awful acts by the
not her were added and she didn't know if the sponsor was
interested in going that direction this year.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that section of the bill was of particular
interest to himand he didn't want anyone in the justice system
to charge that they would try to put a nother on trial for
participating in a legal activity that unintentionally caused a
m scarri age.

Chair Seekins held SB 20 in conmttee.
There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 10:30:14 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- April 4, 2005



